STATE OF OKLAHOMA
DEPARTMENT OF SECURITIES
204 NORTH ROBINSON, SUITE 400
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73102

In the Matter of:

Nicholas Mastropiero (CRD No. 6312582) and
E.J. Sterling, LLC (CRD No. 16569),

Respondents. ODS File 16-014
NOTICE OF SERVICE ON THE ADMINISTRATOR

AND
AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE

STATE OF OKLAHOMA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA)

The undersigned affiant, of lawful age, being first duly sworn upon oath deposes
and states:

: That he is the Administrator of the Oklahoma Department of Securities
(“Department”).

2. That the attached copy of the Order to Cease and Desist and Notice of
Opportunity for Hearing (“Order and Notice") was delivered to Affiant in the office of the
Administrator of the Department (“Administrator”) pursuant to Section 1-611 of the
Oklahoma Uniform Securities Act (“Act”), Okla. Stat. tit. 71, §§ 1-101 through 1-701
(2011).

3 That the Administrator has received service of process on behalf of
Respondents pursuant to Section 1-611 of the Act.

4, That a copy of the Order and Notice, and a copy of this Notice of Service
on the Administrator and Affidavit of Compliance, are being sent this ‘2 day of
October, 2015, by certified mail, return receipt requested, delivery restricted to
addressee, to the last known addresses of Respondents, in compliance with Section
1-611 of the Act.

5. That this Affidavit of Compliance is declared filed of record as of the date
set forth below in compliance with Section 1-611 of the Act.



FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
Dated this Q“ﬂ' day of October, 2015.

(SEAL) ﬁ
rving ught,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Q™= day of October, 2015,

dministrator

-----------------------------------

W BRENDA LONDON |
i @ Notary Public ' Qa
HI 7 |8 State of Oklahoma i Notary Public

-----------------------------------



STATE OF OKLAHOMA
DEPARTMENT OF SECURITIES
204 NORTH ROBINSON, SUITE 400
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73102

by the
In the Matter of: Administrator

Nicholas Mastropiero (CRD No. 6312582) and
E.J. Sterling, LLC (CRD No. 16569),

Respondents. ODS File 16-014
ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

AND
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

Pursuant to Section 1-602 of the Oklahoma Uniform Securities Act of 2004 (the
“Act”), Okla. Stat. tit. 71, §§ 1-101 through 1-701 (2011), the Oklahoma Department of
Securities (the "Department”) conducted an investigation into the activities of Nicholas
Mastropiero (“Mastropiero”) and E.J. Sterling, LLC (‘E.J. Sterling”) (collectively,
“‘Respondents”). Based thereon, the following Findings of Fact, Authorities, and
Conclusions of Law are adopted in support of this Order against Respondents.

Findings of Fact

: E.J. Sterling has been registered under the Act as a broker-dealer since
June 2012. The home office of E.J. Sterling is located in New York, New York.

2. Mastropiero is a resident of Staten Island, New York. Mastropiero has
been registered with FINRA as a general securities representative of E.J. Sterling since
April 2014. Mastropiero has never been registered under the Act.

3. In August 2015, Mastropiero called a certain Oklahoma resident on a
landline located in Oklahoma on two occasions.

4, During the first telephone call, Mastropiero briefly introduced himself and
E.J. Sterling and told the Oklahoma resident that he would call back within a week with
a stock recommendation.

9. During the second telephone call, Mastropiero solicited the purchase of
shares of stock in Fiat Chrysler Automobiles N.V. (Fiat). Mastropiero touted his
“approach to the market” and investment philosophy to the Oklahoma resident.

1



Mastropiero repeatedly asked the Oklahoma resident to “give [him] a shot” by
purchasing shares of stock from him. Mastropiero offered to do an entire portfolio
review for the Oklahoma resident. Mastropiero told the Oklahoma resident again that
his firm is E.J. Sterling.

6. Mastropiero made a third telephone call to the same Oklahoma resident in
September 2015. Once again, Mastropiero stated that he is “with E.J. Sterling” and
solicited the purchase of shares of stock in Fiat. Mastropiero told the Oklahoma
resident that news came out that Fiat would spin off Ferrari in the next couple of weeks;
that once there is news of the spinoff, it would be a “catalyst” to “launch” Fiat to “north of
at least $18 per share”; and that the Oklahoma resident would also receive shares of
Ferrari on a “one for one basis.”

. Mastropiero also told the Oklahoma resident that he could extend the time
for the Oklahoma resident to pay for the trade to about a week.

8. The Oklahoma resident has not purchased, or agreed to purchase, shares
of stock from Mastropiero.

To the extent any of these Findings of Fact are more properly characterized as
Conclusions of Law, they should be so considered.

Authorities

1 Section 1-102 of the Act states, in pertinent part:

In this act, unless the context otherwise requires:

* Ok *

2. "Agent" means an individual, other than a broker-dealer, who
represents a broker-dealer in effecting or attempting to effect
purchases or sales of securities or represents an issuer in effecting
or attempting to effect purchases or sales of the issuer's securities.
A partner, officer, or director of a broker-dealer or issuer, or an
individual having a similar status or performing similar functions is
an agent only if the individual otherwise comes within the term. The
term does not include an individual excluded by rule adopted or
order issued under this act|.]

2. Section 1-402 of the Act states, in pertinent part:

A. It is unlawful for an individual to transact business in this state as
an agent unless the individual is registered under this act as an
agent or is exempt from registration as an agent under subsection
B of this section.



B. The following individuals are exempt from the registration
requirement of subsection A of this section:

1. An individual who represents a broker-dealer in effecting
transactions in this state limited to those described in
Section 15(h)(2) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
U.S.C. Section 780(h)(2));

2. An individual who represents a broker-dealer that is
exempt under subsection B or D of Section 18 of this act
[Section 1-401 of this title];

3. An individual who represents an issuer with respect to an
offer or sale of the issuer's own securities or those of the
issuer's parent or any of the issuer’s subsidiaries to existing
employees, partners, members or directors of the issuer or
the issuer's parent or any of the issuer's subsidiaries, and
who is not compensated in connection with the individual's
participation by the payment of commissions or other
remuneration based, directly or indirectly, on transactions in
those securities;

4. An individual who represents an issuer and who effects
transactions in the issuer’s securities exempted by Section 7
of this act [Section 1-202 of this title], other than paragraphs
11 and 14 of Section 7 of this act [Section 1-202 of this title];

5. An individual who represents an issuer who effects
transactions solely in federal covered securities of the issuer,
but an individual who effects transactions in a federal
covered security under Section 18(b)(3) or 18(b)(4)(D)
[subsequently renumbered 18(b)(4)(E)] of the Securities Act
of 1933 (15 U.S.C. Section 77r(b)(3) or
77r(b)(4)(D)[subsequently renumbered 15 U.S.C. Section
77r(b)(4)(E)]) is not exempt if the individual is compensated
in connection with the agent’s participation by the payment
of commissions or other remuneration based, directly or
indirectly, on transactions in those securities;

6. An individual who represents a broker-dealer registered in
this state under subsection A of Section 18 of this act
[Section 1-401 of this title] or exempt under subsection B of
Section 18 of this act [Section 1-401 of this title] in the offer
and sale of securities for an account of a nonaffiliated federal
covered investment adviser with investments under



management in excess of One Hundred Million Dollars
($100,000,000.00) acting for the account of others pursuant
to discretionary authority in a signed record;

7. An individual who represents an issuer in connection with
the purchase of the issuer's own securities;

8. An individual who represents an issuer and who restricts
participation to performing ministerial or clerical work; or

9. Any other individual exempted by rule adopted or order
issued under this act.

D. It is unlawful for a broker-dealer, or an issuer engaged in
offering, selling, or purchasing securities in this state, to employ or
associate with an agent who transacts business in this state on
behalf of broker-dealers or issuers unless the agent is registered
under subsection A of this section or exempt from registration
under subsection B of this section.

Section 1-604 of the Act provides, in pertinent part:

A. If the Administrator determines that a person has engaged, is
engaging, or is about to engage in an act, practice, or course of
business constituting a violation of this act or a rule adopted or
order issued under this act or constituting a dishonest or unethical
practice or that a person has materially aided, is materially aiding,
or is about to materially aid an act, practice, or course of business
constituting a violation of this act or a rule adopted or order issued
under this act or constituting a dishonest or unethical practice, the
Administrator may:

1. Issue an order directing the person to cease and desist
from engaging in the act, practice, or course of business or
to take other action necessary or appropriate to comply with
this act;

2. Issue an order denying, suspending, revoking, or
conditioning the exemptions for a broker-dealer under
subparagraph d or f of paragraph 1 of subsection B of
Section 18 of this act [Section 1-401 of this title] or an
investment adviser under subparagraph c¢ of paragraph 2 of
subsection B of Section 20 of this act [Section 1-403 of this
title]; or



3. Issue an order under Section 9 of this act [Section 1-204
of this title].

B. An order under subsection A of this section is effective on the
date of issuance. Upon issuance of the order, the Administrator
shall promptly serve each person subject to the order with a copy of
the order and a notice that the order has been entered. The order
must include a statement whether the Administrator will seek a civil
penalty or costs of the investigation, a statement of the reasons for
the order, and notice that, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a
request in a record from the person, the matter will be scheduled
for a hearing and the hearing shall be commenced within fifteen
(15) days of the matter being set for hearing. If a person subject to
the order does not request a hearing and none is ordered by the
Administrator, within thirty (30) days after the date of service of the
order, the order, that may include a civil penalty or costs of the
investigation if a civil penalty or costs were sought in the statement
accompanying the order, becomes final as to that person by
operation of law. If a hearing is requested or ordered, the
Administrator, after notice of and opportunity for hearing to each
person subject to the order, may modify or vacate the order or
extend it until final determination.

C. If a hearing is requested or ordered pursuant to subsection B of
this section, a hearing must be held pursuant to the Administrative
Procedures Act. A final order may not be issued unless the
Administrator makes findings of fact and conclusions of law in a
record in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act. The
final order may make final, vacate, or modify the order issued under
subsection A of this section.

D. In a final order under subsection C of this section, the
Administrator may impose a civil penalty up to a maximum of Five
Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) for a single violation or up to Two
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) for multiple
violations in a single proceeding or a series of related proceedings.

E. In a final order, the Administrator may charge the actual cost of
an investigation or proceeding for a violation of this act or a rule
adopted or order issued under this act.



Conclusions of Law

s Mastropiero is transacting business in this state as an unregistered agent
of E.J. Sterling, in violation of Section 1-402 of the Act.

2. E.J. Sterling is engaged in offering and selling securities in this state and
is associated with an unregistered agent who transacts business in this state on its
behalf, in violation of Section 1-402 of the Act.

3 The Administrator has the authority to order Respondents to cease and
desist from engaging in acts, practices, and/or courses of business constituting a
violation of the Act, and to impose a civil penalty on Respondents.

4. It is in the public interest for the Administrator to order Respondents to
cease and desist from engaging in the acts, practices, and/or courses of business
constituting a violation of the Act, and to impose a civil penalty on Respondents.

To the extent any of these Conclusions of Law are more properly characterized
as Findings of Fact, they should be so considered.

Order

Based on Section 1-604 of the Act and the Findings of Fact, Authorities, and
Conclusions of Law set forth above, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Mastropiero cease
and desist transacting business in this state as an unregistered agent and E.J. Sterling
cease and desist associating with unregistered agents who transact business in this
state on its behalf, in violation of Section 1-402 of the Act.

The Administrator may impose a civil penalty in the amount of $15,000 on E.J.
Sterling in a final order issued under Section 1-604.

Witness my Hand and the Official Seal of the Oklahoma Department of Securities
this & nal day of October, 2015.

(SEAL)

AQGHT /ADMINISTRATOR OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF SECURITIES



NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

Pursuant to Section 1-604 of the Act, the Administrator hereby gives notice to
Respondents of their right to request a hearing. The request for hearing must be
received by the Administrator within thirty (30) days after service of the Order to Cease
and Desist (“Order”). The request for hearing must be in writing and Respondents shall
specifically admit or deny each allegation that is contained in the Order.

Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a request for hearing from Respondents,
this matter will be scheduled for hearing. Notice of the date, time and location of the
hearing shall be given to Respondents. If a hearing is requested, the Administrator,
after notice of and opportunity for hearing, may modify or vacate the Order or extend it
until final determination.

If Respondents do not request a hearing within thirty (30) days after the date of
service of the Order and none is ordered by the Administrator, the Order becomes final
by operation of law.

Witness my Hand and the Official Seal of the Oklahoma Department of Securities
this 272 day of October, 2015.

(SEAL)




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that on theQ“P—‘ day of October, 2015, a true
and correct copy of the above and foregoing Order to Cease and Desist and Notice of
Opportunity for Hearing was mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, delivery
restricted, with postage prepaid thereon, addressed to:

Mr. Nicholas Mastropiero
79 Prall Avenue
Staten Island, NY 10312

Mr. Nicholas Mastropiero
E.J. Sterling, LLC

40 Broad Street, 6" Floor
New York, NY 10004

Robert Costomiris, CEO
E.J. Sterling, LLC

40 Broad Street, 6™ Floor
New York, NY 10004

Brenda London, Paralegal
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U.S. Postal Service

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT

U.S. Postal Service
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SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION

® Complete items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete
item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired.

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY

A. Received by (Please Print Clearly) | B, Date ¢

B Print your name and address on the reverse
so that we can return the card to you.

B Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, {
or on the front if space permits.

1. Article Addressed to:

RFSTRICTED DELIVERY

Mr. Nicholas Mastropiero

=R = )
C. Signat i

' O Agent
X O Addressee |

“Bo_is dlivery addressAfifferent from item 17 L Yes
If YES, enter delivery address below: [ No

E.J. Sterling, LLC

—

40 Broad Street, 6™ Floor
New York, NY 10004 i

NOTCD lle-014 —©hH

3. Service Type
Certified Mail [ Express Mail

O Registered O Return Receipt for Merchandise
O insured Mail O c.opD.

|
i
4, Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee) ézi )és,
s

2. Arlicle Number (Copy from service label)

1000 © 149 2314

|

PS Form 3811, July 1999 * .7 "7 ~Domestic Retuirn Rasceipt® s 1 10l 103505-00:10.0852 !




